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Question: 33

Topic: Psychological Injury Claims Originating in Western Australia (1)

Hansard Page: ECITA 28

Senator George Campbell asked:

… In answer to question No. 20, you indicated that, of the 18 claims for psychological injuries from 2003 to the present, six claims originated in Western Australia. How many staff are employed by the ABC in Western Australia?

Mr Balding—I would have to take that on notice. …

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Don’t you find it extraordinary that a third of the claims for psychological injury have happened in an area which is about five per cent of the organisation?

Mr Balding—Again, it is something you need to look at in the context of the claims as well.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—It still seems an extraordinarily high percentage. You made the claim that there were no hot spots. I am just pointing out to you that, on the face of it, Western Australia would appear to be a very substantial hot spot.

Mr Balding—Again, it depends on the period as well.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—They all happened about the same period. We are talking about 2003-04 and 2004-05. It is the 18 claims we are talking about.

Mr Balding—Let me have a look at it, because you need to look at it in the proper context.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—The organisation—the CPSU, I think it was—raised this issue on behalf of the Western Australian members. There were fears of intimidation and people would not come forward themselves. In that case, why didn’t you investigate those claims?

Mr Balding—Let me have a look it. As I said, I will go back and look at all correspondence that has been referred to me over the last couple of years where these allegations or issues of concern have been raised, and I will follow up to see what has taken place.

Answer:

There are 274 full time equivalent staff employed in Western Australia.

Comcare has accepted liability for six psychological injury claims since 2003. The six claims were spread over four different Divisions, with all the claimants being in quite different roles. The claims stemmed from four different mechanisms of injury—work pressure, bullying, exposure to traumatic event, and other mental stress factors.

Analysis of claims in Western Australia shows a spread across branches, roles and injuries. There does not appear to be any single identifiable issue.

The ABC has previously addressed the issues raised in the CPSU correspondence referred to by Senator Campbell in its answer to Question on Notice 22 arising from the February 2005 Senate Additional Estimates Hearings. A copy of that response is attached.
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Question: 22 

Topic: ABC Policies on Bullying 

Hansard Page: ECITA 26/27 
Senator Campbell asked: 
I understand that claims were raised in Western Australia but the director of human resources was not prepared to accept the claims in the form they were presented. 

Mr Pendleton—I am not aware of that, Senator. I would have to take that on notice……………… 

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—I understand that, as it finished up, there was a collective complaint put in by half of the employees, made by the union because individuals were feeling too intimidated to put the claims in themselves………………………… 

Mr Balding—Let me look into that, please. 

Answer: 
There was no collective complaint of allegations of bullying raised under the ABC’s Anti Bullying Policy in Western Australia. The ABC did however receive correspondence from the CPSU about a concern in relation to a type of “attitude” in a particular work area. 

The State HR Manager of the time wrote to the President of the CPSU in Perth, raising a number of problems with the information provided which meant the ABC was unable to fully investigate the claims. These issues were: 

• no employee identified as being bullied  

• no employee  identified as being a bully; and 

• no specifics provided with respect to the nature of the complaint. 

Based on the above information it was not possible for the ABC to investigate the matter. The State HR Manager reiterated in his correspondence that there were a number of options open to staff under various ABC policies should they have a grievance or any other issue they wanted to address. These options include the initial opportunity to discuss issues with their supervisors through access to Local and Federal Human Resources staff, Grievance Officers, the Employee Assistance Program and, in some cases, the State Director. 

Notwithstanding the fact that the concerns raised in the CPSU’s letter could not be formally investigated under the Policy due to the lack of detail, on a local basis the ABC enquired into the concerns as far as possible. The CPSU was advised that the ABC had received approaches from a few staff who had concerns over specific issues involving workplace conflict and these have been investigated and discussed with the people concerned. The ABC could find no evidence of any unfair treatment, intimidating, belittling and vindictive attitude or other bullying behaviour. 

The CPSU’s correspondence did, however, raise concern about certain aspects of communication within the particular work area, and the ABC responded by undertaking further formal training and consultation in the area. The CPSU and staff were advised that the ABC continues to be prepared to consider any suggestions staff make about improving the communication and cooperation in the area. 

At the time the ABC also approached its Employee Assistance Provider, Corpsych to determine whether use of the service in Western Australia was consistent with employees being subjected to workplace bullying. The rate and reasons for usage did not indicate workplace bullying. While this is, of course, not determinative, along with the other issues outlined above, it informed the ABC about how it dealt with the CPSU’s claims. 

The ABC has implemented a series of workshops, which will eventually be attended by all staff on a mandatory basis. These sessions were conducted in Western Australia in late 2004 and will continue throughout 2005. 

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 





Question: 34

Topic: Psychological Injury Claims Originating in Western Australia (2)

Hansard Page: ECITA 28

Senator George Campbell asked:

... But can I ask you: did the ABC provide reports to Comcare recommending against acceptance of liability in any of the Western Australian claims? If you have not got that answer, I am happy for you to take it on notice.

Mr Balding—I will have to take that on notice.

Answer: 

Yes, in one claim the ABC recommended against the acceptance of liability.
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Question: 35

Topic: Variation of Performance Management Appraisals (1)

Hansard Page: ECITA 28

Senator George Campbell asked:

Are you aware of any circumstances where appraisals have been varied and the supervisor or manager has been counselled over their actions?

Mr Balding—I am not aware of it, no. We can have a look at it for you, but I am not aware of it.

Answer:

Since the current performance management system came into operation in July 2001, there have been 8,649 appraisals completed (as at 30 May 2005). 

Out of these 8,649 appraisals, there have been 23 formal reviews of individual performance appraisals, 19 of which have been finalised. Of the 19 finalised reviews four had the original appraisal decisions changed in the staff member’s favour—three were varied following the internal review, while one had the original decision set aside following conciliation in the Australian Industrial Relations Commission. One other formal review resulted in a proposed performance improvement plan not being implemented. 

Managers who have conducted performance appraisals that have been subsequently overturned are provided with coaching in performance management. There have been no cases where counselling or disciplinary action has been justified.
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Question: 36

Topic: Variation of Performance Management Appraisals (2)

Hansard Page: ECITA 28

Senator George Campbell asked:

Would you have a look at that to see what the figures are for rejection of performance management reports and whether or not there have been any variations in them as a result of further investigations?

Mr Balding—Yes, we can.

Answer: 

See the answer to Question 35.
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Question: 37

Topic: Complaints about the Victorian State Editor of News and Current Affairs

Hansard Page: ECITA 30

Senator George Campbell asked:

Mr Balding, are you personally aware that over 15 formal complaints of bullying have been directed at Mr Marco Bass, the Victorian state editor of news and current affairs?

Mr Balding—I am aware of a number of allegations that have been levelled against Mr Bass.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Are you also aware that five ABC staff members with complaints against Mr Bass and Mr Hamilton, who might have been his immediate superior at the time, all presented and returned identical medical reports?

Mr Balding—I am not aware of that.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Are you aware that different examining doctors advised in each case that staff were psychological balanced but traumatised and stressed after repeated interactions with Mr Bass and Mr Hamilton?

Mr Balding—I am not aware of that.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—I think it is important that I draw these to your attention because they obviously need to be included in any review you do into what happened to claims that were made. Are you aware that Mr Bass, for example, rejected the medical reports as one-sided interviews, with the medical practitioner hearing only the staff member’s experiences?

Mr Balding—No, I am not.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Is there any reason why, given the nature of these complaints, Mr Bass was not stood down while these claims were investigated?

Mr Balding—I would have to have a look at the nature of the complaints and to what extent they were investigated.

Answer:

The number of formal complaints by staff members alleging bullying by Mr Bass under the ABC grievance policy is two (Staff Members A and B).

The number of medical reports received by the ABC that refer to alleged bullying by Mr Bass is four (Staff Members A, B C and D).

The number of medical reports received by the ABC that refer to alleged bullying by Mr Hamilton is one (Staff Member E).

All five staff members were assessed by independent medical practitioners, organised by the ABC, to determine their fitness for work.

Staff Member A made a formal complaint of bullying under the ABC grievance policy, which was formally investigated, but not substantiated.

Staff Member B made a formal complaint of bullying under the ABC grievance policy. Staff Member B requested mediation with Mr Bass to resolve the issue, which was agreed to. The mediation did not occur as Staff Member B resigned before mediation could take place. A medical report assessing Staff Member B’s fitness for work also refers to these allegations of bullying by Mr Bass.

Staff Member C made a Comcare claim, which was not accepted by Comcare. In their report, Comcare stated that there was no medical evidence to support the claim that the medical condition was caused by Staff Member C’s employment, and in particular the allegations of harassment.

Staff Member D made allegations of bullying; however, after repeated requests for details of the allegations, information has not been provided to the ABC and as a consequence the complaint could not be progressed. A medical report assessing Staff Member D’s fitness for work also refers to these allegations of harassment by Mr Bass.

Staff Member E referred to allegations of bullying against Mr Hamilton in a Comcare claim and subsequent medical assessment. The Comcare claim was not accepted by Comcare.

Only one complaint led to a formal investigation by the ABC. The investigation found that the allegations of bullying were not sustained. The ABC believes Mr Bass followed appropriate processes in each case and consulted ABC Human Resources throughout those processes. The ABC considers there was no basis for standing Mr Bass down.
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Question: 38

Topic: Investigation Procedure – Barakat Case

Hansard Page: ECITA 30

Senator George Campbell asked:

In the Barakat case, Mr Crane—I do not know if he is here; he is the ABC’s appointed internal grievance investigator—delivered a report that stated that bullying had not occurred. In the course of his investigation, do you know whether Mr Crane interviewed all of Ms Barakat’s nominated colleague witnesses?

Mr Balding—I would have to look at that. Mr Crane is our HR manager from Queensland.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—If he did not interview Ms Barakat’s nominated colleagues, can you find out why not?

Mr Balding—I will have a look at that.

Answer:

Ms Barakat and the MEAA supplied Mr Crane with a list of 10 additional colleagues for inclusion on Mr Crane’s list of interviewees in relation to Ms Barakat’s claims of bullying. In conducting his investigation, Mr Crane interviewed a total of 13 people, 4 of whom were from this list of additional witnesses supplied by Ms Barakat and the MEAA.

Mr Crane did not need to interview all of Ms Barakat’s additional witnesses because those that he interviewed initially were able to provide him with enough substantiating evidence to make a finding. A case in point was an allegation that Ms Barakat’s behaviour at a meeting had been inappropriate. After interviewing just a few of the witnesses Mr Crane was already able to establish that Ms Barakat’s behaviour had not been inappropriate; he thus did not believe it was necessary to interview the remaining people present at the meeting.

In determining how many people to interview, the investigator must consider what additional information and substantiation that the interviewee can provide, whether their evidence is relevant to the issues, and balance this against the additional cost and time of interviewing them. This is particularly the case if the investigator is already in a position to make a finding due to significant substantiation by others.
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Question: 39

Topic: Grievance and Bullying Investigation Guidelines

Hansard Page: ECITA 30

Senator George Campbell asked:

Do you have a set of guidelines in terms of how people should proceed?

Mr Pendleton—About conducting investigations? Absolutely.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Can you provide the committee with a copy of the guidelines?

Mr Pendleton—Yes.

Answer:

The ABC Personal Grievance policy contains guidelines for the conduct of investigations and the handling of grievances. A copy of this is attached.

All HR staff conducting investigations have undertaken employment investigation training.

HOW THE ABC HANDLES GRIEVANCES

Procedural fairness: The principles of procedural fairness apply during the grievance procedure under the Personal Grievance Policy (the Policy). This means that:

· the grievance will be handled by an impartial person;

· affected persons will be informed of any allegations against them, allowed representation and given an opportunity to respond to any such allegations; and

· the grievance will be progressed as quickly as possible, while affording procedural fairness to affected parties.

This means that if a grievance is raised against an employee or involves one they will have an opportunity to respond with their side of the story.

Impartiality: The person responsible for handling a grievance is required to remain impartial. This means they cannot take sides, favour one party over another or make presuppositions about the matter. If the person handling a grievance considers that they cannot remain impartial for any reason (for example, because they are friends with one of the parties to the grievance) they are required to refer the grievance to another manager.

Work to continue: During a grievance procedures all parties are expected to continue to work as normal. If for some reason an employee believes they cannot continue to work as normal, they should raise this with the manager handling the grievance. All parties are expected to co-operate to ensure the efficient and fair resolution of grievances under the Policy.

Confidentiality: If an employee comes forward with a grievance under the Policy (either as the person raising the grievance, the person complained about or a witness), those handling the grievance will treat it as confidentially as possible. However, in some cases it will be necessary to speak with others in the ABC about the grievance in order to resolve it.

If an employee is involved in a grievance, it is important that they avoid idle gossip and making unsubstantiated claims in circumstances where it is not reasonable to do so. This is because of the possibility of defamation or libel claims and to avoid a breach of the ABC’s Workplace Values of Code of Conduct.

Given the potentially sensitive nature of grievances under the Policy it is essential that all participants in the grievance procedure maintain confidentiality. This is necessary to afford fairness to participants and to ensure all participants can contribute to the grievance process openly and honestly.

The person handling a grievance is the point of contact for employees to discuss matters connected with their grievance. They must not talk to other workplace participants about the grievance. This is to ensure that evidence is not coerced or altered. Employees may of course consult a support person (including their union representative) as well as the person handling the grievance if they require. The obligation to maintain confidentiality applies to all participants involved in the grievance to protect the interests of all affected persons.

Where an employee breaches confidentiality, this may result in disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

Victimisation: If someone does come forward with a grievance, they will not be victimised as a result. Victimisation or retaliation against a person who has lodged a personal grievance under the Policy may result in disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

False and malicious grievances: Employees are expected to raise grievances in good faith. This Policy sets out a process to be used to achieve resolution of genuine grievances. It is not a forum for revenge or retribution. Grievances that are found to have been made falsely and maliciously will not be accepted and may lead to disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

Frivolous or vexatious grievances: As noted above, this Policy is to be used to resolve genuine grievances. Frivolous or vexatious complaints will not be accepted and may lead to disciplinary action, including termination of employment. Examples of frivolous or vexatious grievances include (but are not limited to) where an employee:

a) brings trivial or petty grievances;

b) brings repeated unsubstantiated grievances; or

c) seeks to re-agitate issues that have already been addressed or determined.

Representation/support: If an employee is involved in a personal grievance, an employee representative or other witness may support the employee at any stage during the grievance procedure. They may also seek support or advice from Human Resources, whether they are the person who has the grievance, or if a personal grievance is made against them or involving them.

If an employee requires additional support or assistance at any time during the personal grievance process, confidential counselling is available through the ABC Employee Assistance Program (provided by Corpsych). The cost of accessing the EAP is borne by the ABC up to a maximum of 4 visits. EAP is available to all employees, whether they are the person who has the grievance, or if a personal grievance is made against them, or involving them.

Records: Where a grievance is resolved using the informal resolution procedure, the agreed resolutions and steps arising from the informal procedure will be recorded in order to avoid misunderstandings.

Where a grievance is resolved using the formal resolution procedure, the actions and outcomes will be recorded. The findings and decisions on actions and outcomes arising from the formal procedure are binding on all persons involved in the grievance and constitutes a formal direction. Failure to comply may result in disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

These documents will be stored in a way that maximises confidentiality. However, some members of senior management and Human Resources managers will have access to these documents. In some situations, records of a grievance may need to be stored on an employee’s personnel file, for example, where an employee is issued with a warning arising from a grievance.

Implementation: Generally, management will monitor the parties in a grievance for a period after an informal resolution is reached, or the actions and outcomes are determined and implemented arising from a formal procedure. The purpose of monitoring the parties is to ensure that the resolution of the grievance is implemented, and to ensure there are no further problems.

Investigations: The formal procedure involves an investigation of the issues arising from the grievance by collecting evidence and making findings based on the evidence (adjudicating). Once findings are made, the person handling the grievance will decide on appropriate actions and outcomes (unless the actions or outcomes involve potential termination of employment, demotion or a decrease in salary or any other matter outside the person’s delegated authority in which case the matters will be determined by Director Human Resources or nominated delegate).

An investigation may involve the following steps, depending on the circumstances of the matter:

the employee with the grievance will be interviewed regarding their grievance (if a workplace participant raises a grievances and then does not wish to participate in any investigation this does not mean the matter will not proceed;

other persons involved in the grievance may be interviewed, for example, any person(s) allegedly causing the grievance; and

other relevant information will be collected, for example witnesses may need to be interviewed.

The person handling the grievance may request written or oral statements from the employee and others involved in the grievance, as well as from other employees that have knowledge of what is alleged to have occurred or may appoint an investigator to do so.

Once all of the relevant evidence has been collected, the person handling the grievance will make a finding about any disputed issues arising from the grievance and will decide upon actions and outcomes.

If the ABC considers it appropriate for the safe and efficient conduct of an investigation of a grievance, the employee raising the grievance and/or any other persons may not be required to report for work during the investigation. The ABC may also consider providing the employee with alternative duties during the investigation. Employees will receive their normal pay during any such period.

External assistance: Depending on the nature of the grievance, employees may contact an external agency or their union for advice or help at any time during their grievance. Human Resources can provide contact details if required.

The ABC will not however meet the costs of any external or private legal or other representation.

For further information about this Policy please contact State HR or visit HR’s web page Complaint & Grievance Resolution in the ABC (http://win.abc.net.au/human_resources/complaint_grievance/).
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Question: 40

Topic: Investigation Procedure – Tynan Case

Hansard Page: ECITA 30

Senator George Campbell asked:

Similarly, Mr Balding, in the case of Ms Jacinta Tynan did Tim Burrows, who investigated the bullying claims on behalf of the ABC, interview Ms Tynan regarding her claims?

Mr Balding—I would have to have a look at that.

Answer:

No. Mr Burrows did not interview Ms Tynan because, at the time she made her allegations, she had engaged solicitors. The ABC dealt with her solicitors in relation to matters involving Ms Tynan. 

Ms Tynan’s grievance was to be mediated in line with the ABC Grievance policy, but she resigned prior to this occurring.
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Question: 41

Topic: Fish Incident (1)

Hansard Page: ECITA 31/32

Senator George Campbell asked:

Can you confirm that the same manager who initiated the complaint misused her position by making a brief advertorial promoting her partner’s stall at the Salamanca Market?

Ms Howard—I am sorry; I cannot confirm anything of the kind.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Can you take that on notice and inquire into it? I am assured that it did happen. Was any disciplinary action taken against that manager?

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Was an adverse report made about this employee at his salary assessment for reasons that included the fish incident?

Ms Howard—I am sorry; I cannot confirm that at the moment. We can take that on notice.

Answer:

Can you confirm that the same manager who initiated the complaint misused her position by making a brief advertorial promoting her partner’s stall at the Salamanca Market?

The manager concerned did not initiate the complaint.

The ABC does not believe the manager concerned misused their position in presenting a short segment on Salamanca Markets broadcast on ABC Television in July 2001.

The segment in question was as part of the Radio Pictures series, which presented ABC Radio staff in the context of their roles in regional communities, including activities in which they might be involved as a member of those communities. The manager’s opening comments in the segment provided disclosure that the manager and their partner had a stall at the Markets and spent their weekends there.

ABC Television subsequently received a complaint about the program and conducted a review. No aspect of the manager’s involvement in the segment was found to have constituted a breach of ABC Editorial Policies.

Was any disciplinary action taken against that manager?

As the ABC is of the view that the manager had not misused their position, no disciplinary action was taken.

Was an adverse report made about this employee at his salary assessment for reasons that included the fish incident?

Yes. However, it must be noted that the “fish incident” was one issue among a number of more serious issues covered in the employees’ performance assessment.
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Question: 42

Topic: Fish Incident (2)

Hansard Page: ECITA 32

Senator George Campbell asked:

Are you aware of whether the employee sought to defend himself against the adverse report by advising his assessor that the adverse report was the subject of an ongoing grievance?

Ms Howard—I am not aware of any of the specific details. We can take all of this on notice.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—I will assume, if you do not answer me, that you will take it on notice.

Are you aware of whether or not the employee was then charged with serious misconduct for breaching an instruction not to discuss the fish grievance and matters relating to the fish grievance with any other staff?

Ms Howard—Again, I am not aware of the detail.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Will you take that on notice?

Ms Howard—Yes.

Answer:

Are you aware of whether the employee sought to defend himself against the adverse report by advising his assessor that the adverse report was the subject of an ongoing grievance?

The manager who conducted the 2002 performance appraisal cannot recall the employee mentioning a grievance during the appraisal meeting. However, subsequently, the employee did refer to his grievance in an email requesting a reconsideration of his 2002 performance appraisal.

Are you aware of whether or not the employee was then charged with serious misconduct for breaching an instruction not to discuss the fish grievance and matters relating to the fish grievance with any other staff?

The employee has not been charged with serious misconduct. The employee did receive a warning for breaching confidentiality in relation to the investigation report into his grievances. It should be noted that the “fish incident” was one issue among a number of issues raised by the employee in his allegations against a number of his managers.
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Question: 43

Topic: Fish Incident (3)

Hansard Page: ECITA 32

Senator George Campbell asked:

Can the corporation confirm that the head of workplace relations was named as the independent investigator but an examination of the employee’s file revealed that, far from being an independent investigator, the head of workplace relations was regularly reporting to the director of HR regarding the person who had initiated the fish charge, and had issued the confidentiality direction and then issued the charge of serious misconduct?

Ms Howard—That would be a matter for human resources. I am happy for us to take it on notice.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—I will have you take it on notice, because it appears that human resources have been both prosecutor and judge in respect of this matter, and that is of pretty serious concern. If that is the way in which—

Mr Balding—Senator, let us have a look at that. …

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—I understand in this instance—and I stand to be corrected—that they were directly involved.

Mr Balding—Fine. I am quite happy to have a look at it.

Answer:

The Head of Workplace Relations was initially appointed as an independent investigator into allegations of misconduct against the employee. However, because the enquiry required reviewing and assessing material authored by the Director Human Resources—i.e. the direct supervisor of the Head of Workplace Relations—the matter was subsequently referred to Director Strategy and Communications for final determination.
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Question: 44

Topic: Fish Incident (4)

Hansard Page: ECITA 33

Senator George Campbell asked:

Mr Palmer, the director of HR, flew to Hobart to discuss matters relating to this incident and matters that flowed from this incident. Could you take this question on notice: did any other ABC manager also fly to Hobart to discuss these matters?

Mr Balding—We will take that on board.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Did any consultants engaged by the ABC fly to Hobart to discuss matters arising from the fish incident?

Mr Balding—We will take it on notice.

Answer:

One other Human Resources manager accompanied the Director of Human Resources. A lawyer and an assistant from the Sydney law firm engaged to investigate the claims of which the “fish incident” were a part travelled to Hobart to conduct the interviews.
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Question: 45

Topic: Fish Incident (5)
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Senator George Campbell asked:

Can you also take this on notice: how many man-hours were spent investigating the fish incident and matters that subsequently arose from the fish incident, including all claims of bullying and counterclaims of further misconduct?

Mr Balding—We will.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Please take this question on notice as well: what was the total cost to the ABC of investigating the fish misconduct incident and the matters that subsequently arose from the fish incident, including all claims of bullying and counterclaims of further misconduct?

Mr Balding—Yes.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Can the corporation confirm that it considers the time and resources it has spent on the fish incident and the matters it generated have been an effective utilisation of taxpayers’ dollars and the significant time of at least four senior executives?

Mr Balding—We will address that issue in our answers to questions on notice.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Can the corporation recognise that confidence in the ABC’s bullying policy may be undermined by staff awareness that so-called independent review processes are tainted and, further, that senior management appear to have been involved in using personal procedures to bully and harass staff? Again, that is as part of your overall assessment; I accept that.

Mr Balding—Yes.

Answer:

The ABC investigated the “fish incident” as part of a larger independent and external investigation of claims of bullying by the employee concerned. The employee has over time directed numerous complaints, allegations and accusations at a number of employees, including two of his former managers and his current manager. These complaints have been investigated and determined to be unfounded, despite the continuing protestations to the contrary by the employee concerned. The expenditure was unavoidable in light of the substance and breadth of the allegations made by the employee.

The ABC does not keep a record of the hours spent on issues, but the time spent on this matter overall has been considerable.

The cost of engaging external legal services for investigation and matters arising was $123,414.41. The investigation began on 1 October 2002 and was completed on 12 December 2002. The travel and accommodation costs for ABC employees was approximately $3,572.

The ABC is confident it has proceeded appropriately in accordance with policy.
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Question: 46

Topic: Fish Incident (6)
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Senator George Campbell asked:

One last question for you to take on notice on this: can you also see if you can find out what happened to the fish?

Mr Balding—If it arrived?

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—If it arrived.

Answer: 

The ABC was advised by the employee concerned that he took delivery of the fish and handed it over to the canteen in ABC Hobart.
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Question: 47

Topic: Freelance and Short-Term Staff

Hansard Page: ECITA 34

Senator George Campbell asked:

How many freelance and short-term staff are employed at the ABC?

Mr Balding—I would have to take that on notice.

Answer:

As at the pay period ending 26 June 2005, the ABC had 996 casual, specified task and fixed-term employees.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3





Question: 48

Topic: Financial Advisory Service Operated by Mr Alan Kohler
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Senator George Campbell asked:

… Is it true that Mr Alan Kohler, a financial reporter for the ABC, is currently promoting a private financial advisory service?

Mr Balding—I am not aware of that. I am advised that he has made a proposal but that proposal has not gone any further at this stage.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—I understand he is actually running an internet service now—it is up and running. Has he been given permission for that activity? You say that, no, he has not.

Mr Balding—As I said, I believe he has made a proposal and that proposal has not gone any further. I will have to take that on notice and have a look at it.

Answer:

Alan Kohler is setting up a financial information website. On 31 May 2005, ABC News and Current Affairs management told Mr Kohler that his involvement in any such activity would be permissible provided that in doing so he complied with ABC Editorial Policies and other relevant policies and procedures, and that there could be no conflict of interest with his part-time work for the ABC.
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Question: 49

Topic: Use of ABC Tokyo Bureau Facilities

Hansard Page: ECITA 36

Senator George Campbell asked:

Has Mr [Walter] Hamilton been using the facilities of the ABC in Japan during this period?

Mr Balding—I am not aware of that. I would have to make inquiries.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Could you make inquiries as to whether or not the resources of I think the Tokyo facility—

Mr Balding—We have a Tokyo bureau.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Can you take that on notice and find out whether that is occurring?

Mr Balding—I will.

Answer:

Walter Hamilton, the Head of National Programs with the News and Current Affairs Division, is on leave-without-pay for a year. While in Japan on personal business, he was recalled to duty by the Director of News and Current Affairs and asked to visit the ABC’s Tokyo Bureau to help handle some local ABC office matters, as the Corporation did not have a Tokyo-based correspondent at the time. In doing so, Mr Hamilton was giving of his own time unpaid. He was not using ABC office facilities for private purposes.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3





Question: 50

Topic: Radio National Budget

Hansard Page: ECITA 37

Senator George Campbell asked:

… What was the exact size of the budget blow-out?

Ms Howard—It is a very small proportion of the Radio National budget. I cannot remember exactly what it is.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Does the figure of $200,000 ring a bell?

Ms Howard—I think it would be less than that.

…

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Can you take that on notice and confirm the exact figure?

Ms Howard—Yes.

Answer:

In May, Radio National was forecasting a budget overspend for 2004–05 of $182,000.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3





Question: 51

Topic: Competitive Merit Selection Process (1)

Hansard Page: ECITA 37/38

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL asked:

……… Mr Balding, according to the answer to question No.26, 686 new staff joined the ABC in 2003-04. However, only 437 of those positions were filled through the competitive merit selection process. Why wasn’t this process undertaken for all the positions?

Mr Balding—I will refer that to Mr Pendleton.

Mr Pendleton—The competitive merits process is a formal interview process. A large number of staff are brought in for run of show—that is, very short-term staff are brought in for specific skills. It is the nature of our business.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Mr Pendleton, did all the 249 employees fit into that category?

Mr Pendleton—I believe so.

…………..

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Can you take that on notice?

Answer:

The ABC’s response to Question 26 from the February 2005 Senate Additional Estimates Hearing contained an error (see attached statement from the Managing Director). The number of new staff joining the ABC in 2003–04 was 1,123, not 686 as previously stated. Of the 1,123 new staff engagements:

· 123 were ongoing.

· 281 were fixed term/specified task, and
· 719 were casuals.
During that same financial year, as indicated in Question 26, 437 positions within the Corporation were filled through a competitive merit selection process. These comprise a mix of new employees and existing employees moving into new positions.

It should be noted that, of the 1,123 staff, only 123 positions were ongoing; the balance comprised fixed term/specified task and casual staff, which includes the “run of show” category. For the 1,123 new staff, ABC records do not provide details as to how many  underwent competitive merit selection.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 





Question: 52

Topic: Competitive Merit Selection Process (2)

Hansard Page: ECITA 38

Senator George Campbell asked:

Could you also look at the 249 employees and identify those who did not fit into that category and why they did not go through the competitive merit selection process?

Mr Pendleton—Yes.

Answer: 

See answer to Question 51.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3





Question: 53

Topic: Competitive Merit Selection Process (3)

Hansard Page: ECITA 38

Senator George Campbell asked:

Of the 437 jobs that were filled through the competitive selection processes, how many were filled through a selection panel that included the direct manager of the advertised position?

Mr Pendleton—I would have to take that on notice.

Answer:

The ABC does not retain recruitment records for more than 12 months. As a result, the data do not exist for a full analysis of all 437 positions advertised. However, in the month of June 2004, the only month for which the Corporation still has full data, 28 positions were advertised and subject to a selection process. Of these, three did not have the direct manager on the selection panel.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 





Question: 54

Topic: Run-of-Show Staff

Hansard Page: ECITA 38

Senator George Campbell asked:

… I am looking at your production resources and I am really asking: were any outsiders brought in for particular run of show productions while your full-time employees were sitting on the bench?

Mr Balding—In the same location?

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Yes

Mr Balding—We can look at that.

Answer: 

Yes, there have been occasions when outside staff have been brought in, for reasons including:

· Requirement for specialised skills

· Availability for entire run of show

· Immediacy of requirement

· Contractual arrangements with co-producers.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3





Question: 55

Topic: McGarrity Report

Hansard Page: ECITA 39

Senator George Campbell asked:

Can the committee have a copy of the [McGarrity] report [on resource allocation matters in the TV area]?

Mr Balding—… I would like to take that on notice. If it is not the actual report, I am happy to give an outline of what was in the report and the recommendations.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—I was just about to say that if, for some reason, you cannot give us a full report, perhaps the executive summary and the recommendations would be useful.

Mr Balding—We would be more than happy to do that.

…

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—What is the status of the recommendations at the moment? Is there a committee looking at those or working through them in terms of implementation?

Mr Pendleton—Yes.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—So you will be able to indicate, when you come back to us, the status of the recommendations—where they have been implemented, where they have been discarded and so forth?

Mr Balding—Yes.

Answer:

In mid February 2004, Ian McGarrity was commissioned to undertake the Production Resources Review to evaluate the relationship between the Production Resources Division and output divisions, and whether the ABC was getting optimum value from its yearly investment in production resources. The Review identified a number of issues, and made numerous detailed recommendations to address these issues. The ABC is in the process of working through the recommendations and conclusions; the issues raised in the review report will be addressed.

The review report is an ABC Board Paper and therefore not able to be released. However, the report’s issues and recommendations can be summarised into three key areas:

1.
Production planning: The review recognised that Production Resources management must increase its focus on planning to better support the production needs of content divisions. Specifically the review recognised the need for Production Resources to deliver a costed supply plan which quantifies and documents the level of funded capacity available for TV production. This document will become a critical input into the Television production planning process.

2.
Performance: The Production Resources division expenditure budget should be developed from and linked to agreed, widely understood and acknowledged targets for utilisation, break-even rate and average salary levels for production resources staff. This will result in an increased focus on maximising the Corporation’s funded television production capacity.

3.
Workforce planning: The ABC should better match its total workforce to the demand for its services from the output divisions and provide an agreed supply of labour without seeking extra funds from any division. The ABC acknowledges workforce planning is critical and an area that requires increased focus, especially given the impact that market forces and technological change are having on the Australian production sector.

Since January 2005, the Production Resources Review has been given a high priority within the ABC and a working team is progressing projects focussed on each of the issues. The ABC is in the process of assessing the detailed recommendations arising from the Review and aims to implement them where appropriate by December 2005.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3





Question: 56

Topic: Redundancies

Hansard Page: ECITA 39

Senator George Campbell asked:

According to your answer to question 28, there were 45 redundancies between July 2003 and January 2005. How does this compare to previous years?

…

Mr Balding—… We have put previous information on the record and we are more than happy to give you an analysis of that for over the last three or four years.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—Thank you. Can you tell me how many of these staff were subject to performance review tests before being made redundant?

Mr Pendleton—We will have to take that on notice.

Answer:

How does this compare to previous years?

	Financial Year
	Number of Redundancies

	2000/2001
	294

	2001/2002
	122

	2002/2003
	42


Can you tell me how many of these staff were subject to performance review tests before being made redundant?

Redundancies are based on conditions set out in specific clauses in the various Employment Agreements. Since the introduction of Performance Management in July 2001, ABC staff have annual performance assessments of their work; however, the outcome of these performance assessments is not a basis for redundancy.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3





Question: 57

Topic: Award of 2005 ABC Executive Scholarships

Hansard Page: ECITA 41

Senator George Campbell asked:

I understand that numerous issues have been raised with the ABC and the MEAA in relation to the management of the ABC newsroom in Adelaide, and I think I raised it with you, regarding newspaper reports, at the last estimates. Have any of those complaints against Mr O’Byrne been investigated?

Mr Balding—I do not think they have been investigated by HR yet. I will take that on notice.

Senator GEORGE CAMPBELL—If they were not investigated, I wonder why not and on what basis he was awarded the prize.

Mr Balding—Let me have a look in respect of those allegations.

Answer:

The MEAA has raised some general concerns about the Adelaide newsroom with Mr O’Byrne. However, they have been unwilling to provide Mr O’Byrne with enough specific information to allow him to respond effectively. ABC Human Resources has not yet formally investigated the issues, as the MEAA has yet to raise the issues as a formal grievance.

Mr O’Byrne was selected as the winner of an ABC Executive Scholarship based on merit and drawn from a competitive field.

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 





Question: 58

Topic: Head of Strategy and Development

Hansard Page: ECITA 52

Senator Conroy asked:

What is the salary package of this role [Head of Strategy and Development] —a range is fine?

Mr Balding—Let me come back to you with a range. 

Answer: 

The salary and remuneration package for the role of Head of Strategy and Development is in the range $190,000–$200,000.
Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 





Question: 59

Topic: Internal Audit Report on Fraud Losses
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Senator Conroy asked:

I understand that the ABC board has received an internal audit report on the losses.

…

Senator CONROY—Can the committee obtain a copy of that report?

Mr Balding—Let me have a look at it. It is a board report. We will look at it to get a précis of what the report said and I am happy for you to have a look at it.

Answer: 

As the matter is sub judice, it is not appropriate for the ABC to make public any documentation relating to the charges.

The ABC can advise the general areas covered in Board reporting:

· Current status

· Allegations

· Causes

· Action Taken

· Audit coverage of ABC 

· Fraud Control Better Practice Assessment

Outcome 1, Output 1.1, 1.2, 1.3 





Question: 60

Topic: Broadcast Australia 

Hansard Page: ECITA 59

Senator Conroy asked:

Broadcast Australia currently owns your transmitters. Are you satisfied with the service it has provided so far?

Mr Balding—We are forever monitoring the service of Broadcast Australia. There have been a couple of incidents in recent times that have caused me to write to Broadcast Australia and bring our concerns to its attention, where ABC television and radio has gone off air.

Senator CONROY—You have had a Blue Heelers of a problem, have you?

Mr Balding—We never had the same audience sitting there watching nothing. We are concerned when television and radio goes off air, particularly in prime time and particularly where there have been events of national crisis and natural disaster—bushfires et cetera.

Senator CONROY—Are you able to identify where you are having problems?

Mr Balding—We went off air in South Australia during the bushfires on the Eyre Peninsula. I would have to give you details of other problems. Again, they are quite substantial markets for us—a capital city and regional Australia.

Answer: 

Since April 2005, the ABC has written four formal letters of complaint to Broadcast Australia in relation to transmission problems. The substance of these letters was as follows:

· Letter of 11 April 2005: details a range of outages affecting ABC services across three states, namely:

· January 2005: failure affecting ABC Local Radio in Port Lincoln, South Australia during a bushfire emergency.

· February 2005: failures affecting radio and television services in Melbourne and the Latrobe Valley.

· March 2005: failure affecting radio and television services in Adelaide and Bendigo. 

· April 2005: failure affecting radio and television services in Northern Tasmania, Melbourne and the Latrobe Valley.

· Letter of 10 May 2005: concerns about declines in the performance of Emergency Power Plants (EPPs) reported in a November 2003 EPP review, including concerns that failures may be being under-reported. EPP failures affect the ability of ABC services to return to continue operating in the event of a power failure.

· Letter of 17 May 2005: outages affecting Radio Australia transmissions from Shepparton in Victoria.

· Letter of 10 June 2005: outage affecting Triple J prime time morning service in Melbourne.
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